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I. PARTIES

1. Plaintiff Prestige Autotech Corporation ("Prestige") is a corporation 

organized and existing under the laws of California, and has its principal place of 

business at 14035 Pipeline Avenue, Chino, California 91710.

2. Defendant XPower Wheels & Accessories, Inc. ("XPOWER" or 

"Defendant") is a corporation organized and existing under the laws of California 

and, upon information and belief, has its principal place of business at 6213 

Randolph Street, City of Commerce, California 90040.

3. Plaintiff has attempted formal service on defendant XPOWER and its 

registered agent five separate times.  Plaintiff attempted to serve XPOWER through 

its registered agent, Phoebe Lau, on October 23, 2007, November 14, 2007, and 

February 19, 2008, but Ms. Lau could not be found.  Exhibit A.  

4. Plaintiff has twice attempted formal service on Defendant XPOWER at 

its business location at 6213 Randolph Street in the City of Commerce. Exhibit A.  

On October 23, 2007, despite the business location having featured signage for 

"XPower", the employee on duty claimed that the company was not XPower Wheels 

and Accessories Inc., but rather Choice Auto, Inc. whose owner is Matthew Choy.  

The employee refused to accept service.   Exhibit A.  Then, on February 19, 2008, 

Plaintiff again attempted service at XPOWER's same business address but, this time, 

the employee claimed that the company was actually named "Merceli Wheels" 

(instead of Choice Auto), and offered a business card for Sales Manager Braulio 

Uribe who, upon information and belief, is also the Sales Manager for Defendant 

XPOWER.   See Exhibit A.

5. The business records of California's Secretary of State and the Los 

Angeles County Recorder's Office identify a corporate record for a Choice Auto, 

Inc., which has registered fictitious business names for XPower and Merceli.  

Exhibit B.  However, the Secretary of State's records indicate that Defendant 

XPOWER remains active as a corporate entity with a business location at 6213 
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Randolph Street in the City of Commerce, which is further substantiated by 

XPOWER's website.  See Exhibit C.

6. After recently learning that Defendant XPower now claims to be 

"Merceli Wheels" and based upon Plaintiff's reasonable efforts to further ascertain 

the identity of the corporate defendants, upon information and belief, XPOWER is a 

subsidiary of Defendant Choice Auto, Inc. ("CHOICE AUTO"), a California 

corporation with a principal place of business at 110 E. 9th St., Ste. A1169, Los 

Angeles, California 90079. See Exhibit B.

7. Upon information and belief, Defendant CHOICE AUTO controls and 

manages the activities of Defendant XPOWER and conducts business under its 

assumed names at 6213 Randolph Street, City of Commerce, California 90040. See 

Exhibit A.

II. FACTUAL BACKGROUND

8. Plaintiff, Prestige, has been engaged continuously for a number of 

years in the business of design and distribution of custom wheels for automobiles.  

Prestige's products are sold primarily to automobile dealers and retail distributors of 

automobile wheels throughout the United States.

9. On April 27, 2004, Prestige filed an application, Serial No. 29/204,316 

with the United States Patent and Trademark Office ("PTO") to obtain a design 

patent on an original and unique wheel design, which wheel is known commercially 

as the ORIGIN wheel.  The application was filed in the name of A. Kushartanto, the 

ORIGIN wheel design's inventor and was assigned to PT Prima Alloy Steel 

Universal.  A patent for the ORIGIN wheel design entitled "Vehicle Wheel", Patent 

Number D505,372 ("the '372 Patent") issued on May 24, 2005.  A copy of the '372

Patent is attached as Exhibit D. The rights in the '372 Patent and right to recover 

damages were assigned to Prestige.

/ / /

/ / /
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10. Notwithstanding Prestige's rights in its ORIGIN wheel design, 

Defendants have manufactured, caused to have manufactured, imported, offered for 

sale and/or sold wheels appropriating the design of the '372 Patent, including but not 

limited to a wheel sold under the trademark 859 SPLIT SIX in the United States and 

wheel model number B1859.  Defendants' 859 SPLIT SIX wheel and B1859 wheel 

are identical or substantially similar in appearance, and have the same general 

appearance and visual effect as the ornamental design for the vehicle wheel claimed 

in the `372 Patent.  A webpage printout from Defendants' website showing the 859 

SPLIT SIX and the B1859 wheel are attached hereto as Exhibits E and F, 

respectively.

11. Defendants use of Prestige's original and distinctive ORIGIN wheel 

design has been and is without the consent or authorization of Prestige.

12. On August 8, 2007, Plaintiff Prestige sent a notice to XPOWER of its 

unauthorized and infringing use, manufacture, cause to have manufactured, offers 

for sale and/or sales of embodiments of Plaintiff's '372 Patent. After mailing said 

notices to XPOWER, Prestige then caused copies to be hand delivered, which were 

received by XPOWER on August 16, 2007.

13. Defendants have failed to respond to Plaintiff's notice and has 

continued to make use, manufacture, cause to have manufactured, offer for sale 

and/or sell the infringing wheels, despite its actual notice of infringement of 

Plaintiff's '372 Patent.

14. By their aforesaid acts, Defendants have violated 35 U.S.C. § 271 by 

their infringement of the '372 Patent.

15. Defendants' aforementioned infringement of Prestige's '372 Patent is 

injurious to Plaintiff in that these actions have in the past diverted, and will continue 

to divert, from Plaintiff to Defendants a significant percentage of customers who 

would otherwise buy Plaintiff's wheels at the prices charged by Plaintiff.

/ / /
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16. On information and belief, Defendants' acts of infringement will 

continue unless enjoined by this Court.

17. Prestige is being damaged by Defendants' infringement of the '372 

Patent and is being and will continue to be irreparably damaged unless Defendants

are enjoined by this Court from further infringement.  Prestige does not have an 

adequate remedy at law.

18. On information and belief, infringement by Defendants of the '372 

Patent is and has been carried out deliberately and willfully without Prestige's 

consent and Prestige is entitled to an award of multiple damages and attorney's fees.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff Prestige demands judgment against Defendants 

XPOWER and CHOICE AUTO as follows:

1. That this Court adjudge and declare:

a. That it has jurisdiction over the parties and of the subject matter 

of this action;

b. That United States Patent No. D505,372 is not invalid and is 

owned by Prestige;

c. That Defendants have committed acts of patent infringement by 

their manufacture, cause to have manufactured, importation, offer for sale and/or 

sale of wheels having a design that infringes the design shown in the '372 Patent.

2. That Defendants, their officers, directors, owners, agents, 

representatives, employees, assigns, suppliers, and customers, and all persons acting 

in concert or privity with any of them be preliminarily and permanently enjoined 

from using the designs of the '372 Patent and any confusingly similar variations 

thereof as a wheel design or in promotional material for wheels.

3. That Defendants be required by mandatory injunction to deliver to 

Prestige for destruction any and all wheels in Defendants' possession, custody or 

control embodying unauthorized use of the '372 Patent along with all tooling and 

dies and other things of manufacture, the sole purpose of which is to manufacture 
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Defendants' infringing wheels, as well as any promotional literature and packaging 

which displays the infringing wheel designs, or either of them;

4. That Prestige be awarded damages covered by the acts of the patent 

infringement of Defendants in an amount not less than a reasonable royalty pursuant 

to 35 U.S.C. § 284 or in an amount equal to Defendants' profits pursuant to 35 

U.S.C. § 289, whichever is greater and that these damages be trebled;

5. That the Court find this case exceptional and compel Defendants to pay 

Plaintiff's costs, expenses, reasonable attorney's fees, and prejudgment interest in 

connection with this action; and

6. That Prestige have such other and further relief as the Court may deem 

just and proper.

DATED: February 25, 2008

Respectfully Submitted,

FULWIDER PATTON LLP

By: /s/Vern Schooley/
Vern Schooley
I. Morley Drucker
Michael J. Moffatt
Jessica L. Brookhart-Knost
Attorneys for Plaintiff,
Prestige Autotech Corporation
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DEMAND FOR A JURY TRIAL

Plaintiff hereby makes demand for a jury trial of this action.

DATED: February 25, 2008

Respectfully Submitted,

FULWIDER PATTON LLP

By: /s/Vern Schooley/
Vern Schooley
I. Morley Drucker
Michael J. Moffatt
Jessica L. Brookhart-Knost
Attorneys for Plaintiff,
Prestige Autotech Corporation
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